

## **The Ohio State Triathlon Club** Bylaws effective beginning October, 5 2014.

### I. Purpose Statement

The Triathlon Club hopes to inspire new athletes and experienced athletes to exercise. We will include a fun environment, a training plan and a great workout with teammates. We will introduce the sport of triathlon and all of its elements to our members and encourage them to pursue racing.

### II. Members

1. Members will be allowed to join the club provided that they pay their yearly dues and sign waivers. There will be no tryouts or cutting process, all will be allowed to join and come to as many practices as they choose. Each fall they will have to pay new dues to remain a part of the team or they will be removed from our roster by winter quarter. Dues may be paid at any time to join the team.
2. Members will automatically be removed from our paid members list the following fall quarter to which they were a member and must re-pay the yearly dues. Members may remove themselves from the listserv emails at anytime.
3. If a member conducts themselves inappropriately that is harmful to the image or advancement of the club or is in violation of the OSU Student Code of Conduct, they may be dismissed through majority vote of the officers and through consultation with the club's advisor.

### III. Officers

1. The Officers shall consist of Coaches, President, Vice President, Race Directors, Travel coordinator, Intercollegiate Relations, Apparel Director, Risk Manager, Fundraising Chair, Webmaster, Run Coordinator, Practice Leader, Philanthropy Chair, Secretary, and Treasurer.
2. Officers shall be elected by the club members at the end of each academic school year.
3. Elected officers will serve a term of one year, beginning at the end of the academic year and ending at the end of the following academic year.
4. Officers roles include, but are not limited to:
  1. President – The president shall preside over all Officer Meetings and complete all activities to maintain good standing with the Ohio State University Club Sports department and with the public.
  2. Vice-President -- The Vice President shall assume the duties of the President in case of the President's absence and assist the President in working towards the goals of the club
  3. Secretary – The Secretary shall be responsible for taking minutes at the Officer Meetings and will keep club members updated on Officer activities by making minutes available to any member.
  4. Treasurer – The Treasurer shall keep record of the organization's budget and prepare financial reports as needed. It is the Treasurer's responsibility to advise the Officers on the financial situation of the club in the event of expenditures.
5. Officers will automatically be removed from their positions after the new election process is complete. If in the unexpected case an officer must be removed for other reasons,

fellow officers will discuss this privately and vote on the issue, majority rules. If an officer is unable to fill their position for whatever reason, their opponent with the second most votes or a volunteer may fill their spot until the original elected officer can continue their duties.

#### IV. Committees

1. Committees will be comprised of an approved group of one or more members (whether they are Officers or General Members). Committees must be approved by a majority of Officers before the Committee may be formed.
2. Committees will serve to complete tasks which help the club achieve its goals, including but not limited to organization of club and community events and evaluation of expenditures.
3. The Officers may appoint standing and ad hoc committees as needed.

#### V. Officer Meetings

1. Officer Meetings shall be held monthly at the President and Vice President's scheduling and will require the attendance of all Officers.
2. Officer Meetings shall be open to any member of the club. All club members will be allowed to contribute, but voting will be closed to Officers only.
3. Special meetings may be held at any time when called for by the President, Coach, or a majority of Club members.
4. Meeting minutes shall be provided to all Club members via email within one week after the meeting

#### VI. Voting

1. Officers will be elected by a quorum.
  1. A majority of Club members constitutes a quorum.
  2. In absence of a quorum, either the two candidates share the position or one resigns from the vote
2. Motions at Meetings must be Raised and Seconded to reach a vote. Passage of a motion requires a simple majority of Officers.

#### VII. Conflict of Interest

1. Any Officer who has a financial, personal, or official interest in conflict with, or in the appearance of conflict with any matter pending before the Officers, of such nature that it prevents or may prevent that Officer from acting on the matter in an impartial manner, must offer to voluntarily excuse him/herself from the meeting and will refrain from discussion and voting on said item.

#### VIII. Fiscal Policies

1. The fiscal year of the Club shall start at the end official end date of the university's academic year academic school year and end at the following academic year end along with the Officers office term.

## IX. Amendments

1. These by-laws may be amended by a 75% majority of Officers, provided 90% of officers are in attendance during the meeting at which amendments are made and a copy of the proposed amendment(s) are provided to each Officer during the meeting.

## X. Non- Discrimination Clause

1. Discrimination against any individual based upon protected status, which is defined as age, color, disability, gender identity or expression, national origin, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, or veteran status, is prohibited.

## XI. Continuity in Case of Suspension

1. If the team is suspended for violating the Code of Student Conduct, Competitive Sports will appoint an Interim President and an Interim Treasurer. The Interim President and Interim Treasurer may (1) transfer signatures and check writing authority for the organization's bank account to themselves with thirty days of suspension, (2) pay existing financial obligations out of the organization's current funds, and (3) when the period of suspension ends, take appropriate steps with Student Activities to re-register as a student organization. Further, the Interim President and Interim Treasurer shall inventory the organization's equipment and write a plan for its storage and safekeeping during the suspension period. This plan must be submitted to Competitive Sports within the first thirty days of suspension. During this suspension no new coaches or staff should be hired during this time. All club assets are frozen during this suspension period meaning nothing should be bought or sold during this time. Should the Interim President or Interim Treasurer wish to take any additional actions, they must seek advance approval from Competitive Sports.

## XII. Return to Competitive Sports

1. In order to return as a recognized Sport Club team, The Interim President must provide Competitive Sports with documentation that the team is a recognized student organization. The Interim President must also provide a roster of at least 15 students to Competitive Sports along with a written plan to hold elections. This plan should, to the extent possible due to the terms, length and timing of suspension, resemble the provisions contained in Article III.